FORM B ( BUILDING 

Massachusetts Historical Commission

Massachusetts Archives Building

220 Morrissey Boulevard

Boston, Massachusetts 02125 

Photograph

	[image: image1.jpg]



View from south


Locus Map (north at top)
	[image: image2.jpg]





	Recorded by:   Kathryn Grover & Neil Larson


	Organization:  Town of Georgetown


	Date:  October 2012



Assessor’s Number       USGS Quad      Area(s)     Form Number
	11A-64
	
	Georgetown
	
	C
	
	GEO.130


	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
18 Central Street

	Historic Name:  
William P. & Harriett Hobson House

	Uses:
Present: 
two-unit condominium residence

	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1845

	Source:  
deeds

	Style/Form:   
Greek Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
brick

	Wall/Trim:  
vinyl clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


none

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


Bay window added, ca. 1880

Entrance altered


Rear ell added


Doorways added to N & S sides, stairs on N


Vinyl siding added


Window sash replaced



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no      Date:
 
yes 

	Acreage:  0.28

	Setting:   This house is sited on the east side of Central Street just north of its intersection with Clark, Andover, and Library Streets. The area is a mix of residential, institutional, and commercial uses.


 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The William P. & Harriett Hobson House, built ca. 1845, is a two-story wood frame dwelling located on the east side of Central Street south of Main Street.  The front-gable façade contains an entrance offset by a two-story bay window with beveled corners.  The doorway is recessed; the original door and sidelights appear to be intact; however, the characteristic trabeated architrave has been removed.  The bay window is a later 19th-century addition.  More recently a second entrance was added to the four-bay south façade; the original window east of the doorway was replaced with a smaller unit at this time.  At the same time, another doorway was created on the second story of north wall along with an open run of stairs constructed of pressure-treated lumber.  A one-story bay window is located behind the stairs.  A photograph of the building dated 1870 shows a small one-story ell attached to the rear of the house.  This feature has been enlarged or replaced with the current two-story ell.  

The house is sited on the north side of the lot; the area south of the house has been paved for a parking lot.  The rear of the property is enclosed by a fence and landscaped as lawn.  
The William P. & Harriett Hobson House, built c. 1845, is an altered example of a dwelling designed in the Greek Revival style.  A two-story bay window was added later in the 19th century and substantial alterations to the front entrance and side walls were made in the late 20th century when the house was first adapted for the inclusion of a dentist’s office and, then, to contain two condominium apartments.  In spite of these alterations, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
The house at 18 Central Street was on this site before February 1848, when the shoe manufacturers and brothers Joseph and Benjamin Little and Mary Todd of Rowley transferred a quarter of an acre and its buildings to shoe manufacturer William Pierce Hobson, “said premises being the same upon which the said Hobson now lives.”
 Joseph and Benjamin Little, natives of West Newbury who came to Georgetown about 1810 and began a store and shoe factory, the latter said to have been the first to manufacture footwear on a large scale in the town. They never married, and they boarded in different Georgetown households at least from 1840 until their deaths, Benjamin in that year and Joseph in 1861. Whether they built this house on speculation or for some time might have lived here is not known.
Born in Rowley, William P. Hobson (1812-1901) married Harriet Lambert of Rowley in that town in 1836, and the couple’s two children, Mary Frances and John Lambert, were also born in Rowley in 1839 and 1841 respectively. Exactly how long prior to 1848 Hobson came to Georgetown is unclear. By April 1853 Hobson had moved with his family to the larger shoe manufacturing center of Haverhill, and he sold 18 Central Street to Charles Mason, also a native of Rowley.
 He was born Charles Adams Lowell, the son of Jacob and Abigail (or Nabby) Lowell in 1815 and was one of seven children. By the time he married seamstress Mary Conant of Georgetown in 1844, he had legally changed his last name to Mason, and he was working as a shoe manufacturer. In 1850 he was living with his wife and infant son Charles in the household of his mother-in-law, Lucy Conant, in Georgetown. His father Jacob died a pauper in Georgetown in 1855.
The order of enumeration in the 1860 census shows the Mason family at 18 Central Street. Charles Mason is shown with $1600 in real property (he had acquired the house and its lot for $1425 seven years earlier). The household included himself and his son Fred, born in 1851; what became of his son, Charles H. Mason, is unclear, as no death record has been found for him in Massachusetts.

Charles Mason died in 1895, and his widow Mary died in Georgetown in January 1911. In September of the same year Edward S. Pickett, who had acquired title to 18 Central Street through Mary Conant Mason’s will, sold the property to Caroline Bartlett and Helen Dunham Welch.
 Bartlett was Welch’s aunt by marriage: born about 1832 in Plymouth, Bartlett was the daughter of shipmaster Truman Bartlett and Mercy Jennings, and her sister Angeline, born in 1840, was Helen Welch’s mother and the wife of Isaac T. Dunham. Bartlett lived at 18 Central Street until she died in April 1916. The 1920 census shows Welch at this address with her husband William B. Welch, a Topsfield native whom she married in Plymouth in 1902, their son Truman, and their daughter Ellen Hood Welch. Welch was a retail shoe salesman.
William B. Welch died in 1925, and the 1930 census shows Helen Welch at 18 Central with her daughter Ellen, then seventeen, Helen Welch lived at 18 Central until she died in April 1959, and in December that year her son and administrator Truman sold the property to Lewis and Patricia E. Skeirik.
 Born in Massaachusetts about 1932, Lewis Skeirik was the son of Shicory Skeirik, a shoe shop cutter and textile mill cloth examiner whose father Hanna had come to Lawrence from Syria by the turn of the century. Shicory Skeirik was born in Lawrence in 1900. By 1930 he and his wife Selma, whose parents were also Syrian, were living in Binghamton, New York, but by 1940 they had returned to Massachusetts and were living in Andover with their children Marion, Lewis, and Eileen and with Lewis’s grandfather Hanna. Lewis Skeirik was a 1956 graduate of Tufts University Dental School, and by 1953 he had married Patricia Drummey and had established a dental practice in Georgetown. By the time the Skeiriks sold 18 Central Street in 1975, they were living at 302 Central Street. The property changed hands often afterward, and by 2007 it had been converted to two condominiums. The current owners are Emily Mason and Kevin Hyde.
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18 Central Street: views from NW (top) and SE (bottom)
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National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

   Eligible only in a historic district  Individually eligible            
  Potential historic district  Contributing to a potential historic district         
Criteria:          D
    C        B          A       
Criteria Considerations:          G
    F          E        D        C        B        A     
                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
 The William P. & Harriett Hobson House, built c. 1845, is an altered example of a dwelling designed in the Greek Revival style.  A two-story bay window was added later in the 19th century and substantial alterations to the front entrance and side walls were made in the late 20th century when the house was first adapted for the inclusion of a dentist’s office and, then, to contain two condominium apartments.  In spite of these alterations, the building is a contributing component of the village district.     
� Joseph Little and Benjamin Little to William P. Hobson, 21 February 1848, SED 413:255; Mary Todd, Rowley, to William P. Hobson, 21 February 1848, SED 413:256.


� William P. Hobson, Haverhill, to Charles Mason, 23 April 1853, SED 476:156.


� Edward S. Pickett to Caroline Bartlett and Helen D. Welch, 11 September 1911, SED 2104:189.


� Trunan B. Welch, administrator estate Helen D. Welch, to Lewis and Patricia E. Skeirik, 19 December 1959, SED 4632:315


� Lewis and Patricia E. Skeirik, 302 Central Street, to Harland J. Gibbs, 9 January 1975, SED 6123:167; Amy Lajoie, aka Amy D. Elegbede, 18 Central, to Kevin Hyde, Salem MA, 26 April 2006, SED 25684:429; Kevin Hyde, Unit 2, 18 Central Street, to Emily Mason, Unit 1, same, 20 July 2007, SED 27034:228.
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